












 

 

MICHIGAN BUREAU  OF ELECTIONS 
R ICHARD H.  AUSTIN BUILDING ●  1ST FLOOR  ●  430  W. ALLEGAN ●  LANSING,  MICHIGAN 48918 

M i chigan .gov /E lec t i ons  ●  ( 517)  335-0170 

July 19, 2022 

Erik Benko        

4917 S. Nevins Road 

Sidney MI, 48885     

 

Re: Patriots for Montcalm v. Benko 

Campaign Finance Complaint No. 2022-05-18-204 

 

Dear Mr. Benko: 

 

The Department of State (Department) has received a formal complaint filed against you by 

Patriots for Montcalm alleging that you violated the Michigan Campaign Finance Act (MCFA or 

Act). Specifically, the complaint alleges that you ran for Sidney Township Trustee without filing 

the required statement of organization or campaign statements. A copy of the complaint is 

included with this notice. 

 

Section 21 of the MCFA requires a candidate to form a candidate committee within 10 days of 

becoming a candidate. MCL 169.221(1). Section 24 requires committees to file a statement of 

organization with the proper filing official within 10 days after the committee is formed. MCL 

169.224(1). Section 24 details specific requirements for all statements of organization that must 

be filed. See MCL 169.224(2)-(3). A person who fails to file a timely statement is subject to a 

civil fine of up to $1,000.00. MCL 169.221(13). A person who fails to file a statement of 

organization shall pay a late filing fee of $10.00 per business day the report is not filed, not to 

exceed $300.00. MCL 169.224(1). A person failing to file a statement of organization after 30 

days is guilty of a misdemeanor punishable by a fine of up to $1,000.00. Id. 

 

The MCFA also requires committees to file reports detailing contributions and expenditures with 

the appropriate filing official by specific dates. MCL 169.233(1)-(3). The Act requires a 

committee that receives or expends more than $1,000 during any election to file campaign 

finance reports in compliance with the act. MCL 16.233(6).1 A person who knowingly omits or 

underreports expenditures required to be disclosed by the Act is subject to a civil fine of not 

more than $1,000.00 or the amount of the expenditures omitted or underreported, whichever is 

greater. MCL 169.233(11). 

 
1 A committee that receives less than $1,000 in contributions and makes less than $1,000 in expenditures during the 

election cycle may request a reporting waiver on its Statement of Organization relieving the committee of the duty 

to file campaign statements. Because you did not file a Statement of Organization, however, you could not have 

requested the reporting waiver. 
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The purpose of this letter is to inform you of the Department’s examination of these matters and 

your right to respond to the allegations before the Department proceeds further. It is important to 

understand that the Department is neither making this complaint nor accepting the allegations as 

true. The investigation and resolution of this complaint is governed by section 15 of the Act and 

the corresponding administrative rules, R 169.51 et seq. An explanation of the process is 

included in the enclosed guidebook. 

 

If you wish to file a written response to this complaint, you are required to do so within 15 

business days of the date of this letter. Your response may include any written statement or 

additional documentary evidence you wish to submit. Materials may be emailed to 

BOERegulatory@michigan.gov or mailed to the Department of State, Bureau of Elections, 

Richard H. Austin Building, 1st Floor, 430 West Allegan Street, Lansing, Michigan 48918. If you 

fail to submit a response, the Department will render a decision based on the evidence furnished 

by the complainant. 

 

A copy of your answer will be provided to Patriots for Montcalm, who will have an opportunity 

to submit a rebuttal statement to the Department. After reviewing the statements and materials 

provided by the parties, the Department will determine whether “there may be reason to believe 

that a violation of [the MCFA] has occurred [.]” MCL 169.215(10). Note that the Department’s 

enforcement powers include the possibility of entering a conciliation agreement, conducting an 

administrative hearing, or referring this matter to the Attorney General for enforcement of the 

penalty provided in section 33(11) of the Act. 

 

If you have any questions concerning this matter, you may contact the Regulatory section of the 

Bureau of Elections at BOERegulatory@michigan.gov. 

  

Sincerely, 

 

        Regulatory Section 

        Bureau of Elections 

        Michigan Department of State 
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McInerney, Jenny (MDOS)

From: Erik Benko <eriksbenko@gmail.com>
Sent: Tuesday, July 26, 2022 7:49 AM
To: MDOS-BOERegulatory
Subject: Campaign Finance Complaint
Attachments: Campaign Finance Complaint Form - Patriots for Montcalm.pdf; Committee filing.pdf; 

Candidate Committee Cover Page.pdf; Candidate Committee Summary Page.pdf

Categories: Jenny

CAUTION: This is an External email. Please send suspicious emails to abuse@michigan.gov 

 

Good Morning, This email is in response to a complaint received by your office via USPS on 7/25/2022.  
I have scanned and attached that complaint form which claims I (Erik Benko) exceeded the $1,000 threshold and did not 
report my campaign expenditures and donations.  
To refute this patently false and easily refutable claim I have also attached my committee filing page, my committee 
cover page, and my committee summary pages, which have been stamped by Montcalm County Clerk Kristen Millard. 
Not only is all of this information easily available to the public via FOIA for the alleging Political Action Committee - 
Patriots for Montcalm to access and verify, but the local newspaper ran a story the day after the election based on such 
a FOIA request where they named all of my campaign contributors along with the associated donation amounts.  
This complaint is just another example of the petty and malicious activity of the Political Action Committee - Patriots For 
Montcalm, and I'm sorry that they have wasted government resources with this frivolous complaint.  
Thank you for your time and consideration in this matter.  
Sincerely, Erik S. Benko 









 

 

MICHIGAN BUREAU  OF ELECTIONS 
R ICHARD H.  AUSTIN BUILDING ●  1ST FLOOR  ●  430  W. ALLEGAN ●  LANSING,  MICHIGAN 48918 

M i chigan .gov /E lec t i ons  ●  ( 517)  335-0170 

July 29, 2022 

Patriots for Montcalm           

PO Box 81 

Stanton, MI 48888   

Via email to montcalmadvocates@gmail.com     

 

Re: Patriots for Montcalm v. Benko 

Campaign Finance Complaint No. 2022-05-18-204 

 

Dear Patriots for Montcalm: 

 

The Department of State received a response from Erik Benko to the complaint you filed against 

them alleging a violation of the Michigan Campaign Finance Act, 1976 P.A. 388, MCL 169.201 

et seq. A copy of the response is provided as an enclosure with this letter. 

 

You may file a rebuttal statement after reviewing the enclosed response. If you elect to file a 

rebuttal statement, you are required to do so within 10 business days of the date of this letter. The 

rebuttal statement may be emailed to BOERegulatory@michigan.gov or mailed to the 

Department of State, Bureau of Elections, Richard H. Austin Building, 1st Floor, 430 West 

Allegan Street, Lansing, Michigan 48918.  

  

Sincerely, 

 

Regulatory Section 

                                                                                                Bureau of Elections 

                                                                                                Michigan Department of State 

c. Erik Benko via Email  
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McInerney, Jenny (MDOS)

From: McInerney, Jenny (MDOS)
Sent: Wednesday, August 3, 2022 11:51 AM
To: vitals@montcalm.us
Subject: Campaign finance question 

Dear Clerk Millard,  
 
The Michigan Bureau of Elections is currently investigating a Michigan Campaign Finance Act complaint filed 
against Erik Benko, a candidate for Sidney Township Trustee. The initial complaint, filed on May 2, 2022, 
alleged that Mr. Benko had failed to file his required pre-election campaign statement. Mr. Benko responded 
with campaign statements that were received by your office on May 3. Did you make any determination 
regarding the timeliness of Mr. Benko's filing or assess any late filing fees? Knowing that will help us determine 
whether to dismiss the complaint. I appreciate your attention to this issue.  
 
Thank you very much, 
 
Jenny McInerney 
Election Law Specialist  
Regulatory Section 
Michigan Bureau of Elections 
Main: 517-335-3234 
McInerneyJ1@michigan.gov  
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September 27, 2022 

 

Patriots for Montcalm 

PO Box 81 

Stanton, MI 48888 

  

Re: Patriots for Montcalm v. Benko 

 Campaign Finance Complaint No.: 2022 - 05 - 18 - 204 

 

Dear Patriots for Montcalm: 

 

The Department of State (Department) has concluded its investigation into the formal complaint 

you filed against Erik Benko alleging violations of the Michigan Campaign Finance Act (MCFA 

or Act), 1976 PA 388, MCL 169.201 et seq.  This letter concerns the resolution of the complaint. 

 

Your complaint was received on May 2, 2022 and alleged that Benko exceeded the $1,000 

reporting waiver threshold.  Specifically, you alleged that Benko had sent letters to more than 

1,000 voters, purchased signs, and was running radio advertising but had failed to disclose these 

transactions.   

 

The Department notified Benko of the complaint by letter dated July 19, 2022.  Benko responded 

by email on July 26, 2022 and provided the Department with date- and time-stamped copies of 

the reports which were filed with the Montcalm County Clerk’s Office.  The reports were 

received by the County Clerk on May 3, 2022. 

 

By letter dated July 29, 2022, the Department sent you a copy of the response and notified you of 

your right to file a rebuttal.  To date, no rebuttal has been received.   

 

Upon review, the Department determines that the evidence submitted is insufficient to support 

the conclusion that a potential violation of the MCFA has occurred.  Section 24 of the Act 

provides that candidates not receiving or expending more than $1,000 are required to file reports 

with the appropriate filing official.  The reports must contain specific information when 

disclosed and must be filed by specific dates under the Act.  MCL 169.233; 169.234. When 

reports are not timely filed, the filing official is authorized to assess late filing fees. 

 

Here, the Department received the complaint on May 2, 2022.  The next day, Benko filed the 

reports with Montcalm County Clerk.  After filing the reports, Benko then received notification 

by the Department that it intended to investigate the complaint.  Because the reports were filed 

prior to receiving notification of the complaint, the Department dismisses the instant complaint 

and will take no further action. 

http://www.michigan.gov/elections
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The Department notes that the committee may be assessed late filing fees by the county clerk for 

any report that was not timely filed. Late-filing fees are assessed and collected by the filing 

official with whom the statements are filed.  MCL 169.217(1).  Any questions regarding these 

late-filing fees should be directed to the Montcalm County Clerk.  

 

The Department now considers the instant matter closed and will take no further action at this 

time. 

 

Sincerely, 

 
Adam Fracassi 

Bureau of Elections 

Michigan Department of State 

 

c: Erik Benko 
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